# NEW FAIRFIELD PUBLIC SCHOOLS NEW FAIRFIELD, CONNECTICUT

## REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOOD SERVICE MANAGEMENT COMPANY BID NUMBER 2009-2010BOE

Response Date: April 22, 2009 at 10:00 a.m.

#### REQUEST FOR PORPOSALS

#### FOOD SERVICE MANAGEMENT

Monday, March 16, 2009

The New Fairfield Public Schools is accepting proposals for a FOOD SERVICE MANAGEMENT CONTRACT for the School District until **10:00 a.m.** on **Wednesday, April 22, 2009.** At this time proposals will be opened in the New Fairfield Board of Education offices located at

3 Brush Hill Road, New Fairfield, CT. 06812

All proposals must be clearly marked on envelope: NEW FAIRFIELD PUBLIC SCHOOLS FOOD SERVICES PROPOSAL, BID NUMBER 2009-2010BOE – DUE DATE **Wednesday, April 22, 2009** at **10:00 a.m.** and should be sent to:

Patty Mota, New Fairfield Board of Education, 3 Brush Hill Road, New Fairfield, CT 06812

Proposals may be submitted up to **10:00 a.m.** on **Wednesday**, **April 22**, **2009**. Please submit (1) original and four (4) copies of your proposal Any proposals submitted after that time will be disqualified and returned. Questions concerning the proposal may be directed to Patty Mota at New Fairfield Board of Education, (203) 312-5653 phone (203) 312-5658 fax.

Enclosed are our requirements and specifications.

At the time designated by New Fairfield Public Schools, all proposals will be opened in the Board of Education offices located at 3 Brush Hill Rd, New Fairfield, CT. 06812. The New Fairfield Public Schools District reserves the right to reject any and/or all proposals received or any parts thereof for any reason whatsoever, to waive any informality in any proposal or in any provision in the request for proposals, to require a modification of the contract terms at any time, and to select the bidder who, in the opinion of the District, will meet the best interests of the District, provided that nothing herein shall be deemed to waive any requirement of federal, state or local law. Under no circumstances will the district be responsible for the cost of preparing any bid or proposal. The New Fairfield Public Schools reserves the right to waive any and all guidelines herein and to reject any and all proposals if considered to be in the best interests of the New Fairfield School District,

Thank you for your interest in the New Fairfield Public Schools.

Sincerely,

Patty Mota Purchasing Agent New Fairfield Public Schools

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

		Page
Section I	Instructions	5
Section II	Qualifications	6
Section III	Program Objectives	6
Section IV	Scope and Purpose	7
Section V	Specifications	7
Section VI	Equipment	8
Section VII	Facilities	8
Section VIII	Sanitation and Safety	9
Section IX	Employees	9
Section X	Free and Reduced Lunch	10
Section XI	Meals – Portions, Planning and Purchasing	10
Section XII	Federally Donated Commodities	11
Section XIII	Food Inventory, Storage and Procurement	14
Section XIV	Financial Accounting, Reporting Systems & Records	14
Section XV	Licenses, Fees, Taxes	16
Section XVI	Performance & Proposal Bond	16
Section XVII	Insurance	16
Section XVIII	Contract Terms, Renewal and Termination	17
Section XIX	Special and General	17
Section XX	Acceptance of Proposals and Awards	18
Section XXI	Proposal Format and Contents	19
Section XXII	Evaluation of Proposals	22

Schedules	A. B. C. D. E. F.	Cost Responsibility Survey Procurement Specifications Price List (2008-2009) Enrollment/Serving Times Financial Schedules Reimbursement Rates	24 26 27 28 29 33
Exhibits	A. B. C. D.	Reimbursement Claims for the Last 12 M Current School Calendar Meal Counts and Sales by School Attendance Factors and Eligible Free and	
Addendums	A. B. C. D. E. F. G.	Non-Collusion Affidavit Independent Price Determination Certification Regarding Lobbying Disclosure of Lobbying Activities Suspension & Debarment Certification Clean Air/Water Certificate Energy Policy and Conservation Act State	ement

#### **SECTION I: Instructions**

#### 1.1 Purpose of this request for proposal (RFP):

The organization or individual responding to this request will be referred to as the FSMC and the contract will be between the FSMC and NEW FAIRFIELD PUBLIC SCHOOLS (the District).

This solicitation is for the purpose of entering into a contract for the operation of a food service program for the New Fairfield Public Schools. The New Fairfield Public Schools food service program currently includes the National School Lunch Program (NSLP). The FSMC will assume responsibility for the efficient management and consulting service of the food program including, but not limited to; menus, purchasing, receiving, storing, setting up cafeteria lines, counter service, cleanup, sanitation, training, hiring and supervising personnel, and presenting food in a way to create optimum student participation. The program will include the use of federally donated commodities.

#### 1.2 Response Date and Pre-Bid Conference

Five (5) copies of your proposal must be received at the Purchasing Agent prior to **10:00 a.m.** on **Wednesday**, **April 22**, **2009**. Any proposal enroute, (either in the mail or other locations in the School District) will not be considered timely and will be returned unopened. Proposals received after the deadline will be late and ineligible for consideration.

Visitations to existing school site(s) are required and will be coordinated through the Purchasing Agent. Proposers will meet on **March 26, 2009** at **2:00 P.M**. in the High School Conference Room at 54 Gillotti Rd, New Fairfield for a **MANDATORY** proposers conference after which school visitations will be conducted. Any proposer failing to make site visits will have its proposal disqualified and rejected.

#### 1.3 Consideration and Award

The New Fairfield Public Schools may award a contract based upon the initial proposals received without discussion of such proposals. Accordingly, each initial proposal should be submitted with the most favorable price and service standpoint. All proposals shall include completed forms as provided by the District on **Schedule E**. The New Fairfield Public Schools District reserves the right to reject any or all proposals received or any parts thereof for any reason whatsoever, to waive any informality in any proposal or in any provision in the request for proposals, to require a modification of contract terms at any time, and to select the bidder who, in the opinion of the District, will meet the best interests of the District, provided that nothing herein shall be deemed to waive any requirement of federal, state or local law. Under no circumstances will the District be responsible for the cost of preparing any bid or proposal.

#### 1.4 Issuing Office

The Business Office is the issuing office for this document and all subsequent addenda relating to it.

The information provided herein is intended to assist the FSMC in the preparation of proposals necessary to properly respond to this RFP. The RFP is designed to provide interested FSMC with sufficient basic information to submit proposals meeting minimum requirements, but is not intended to limit a proposal's content or exclude any relevant or essential data there from. The FSMC are at liberty and are encouraged to expand upon the specification details to evidence service capability under any agreement.

Questions related to any portion of this Request for Proposal should be directed in writing to the business office or sent via fax (203) 312-5658. Only written questions will be accepted up to one week prior to proposal due date.

#### **SECTION II – Qualifications**

#### The following conditions must be met at a minimum and addressed in proposals:

- 2.1 The firm must be of sufficient size and expertise to furnish the resources needed to manage and continuously improve the food services operation. The qualification data shall be submitted by each contractor along with the sealed proposal.
  - a. Company must be licensed to do business in the state of Connecticut.
  - b. The interested company must have been doing business for five consecutive years or more with school districts.
  - c. Any interested company must be willing to provide a performance bond for the amount of the total sales of the food service program, should it be awarded. A surety letter from an acceptable bonding or surety company indicating ability to obtain the bond must be included with the proposal.
  - d. Each district shall include financial statements from three operating units.
  - e. Annual reports of financial statements certified by a licensed public accountant for the last year must be included with the proposal along with a three (3) year financial summary.
- 2.2 The FSMC must have extensive involvement and experience in the school food services field in the areas of: designing and planning serving and dining areas; selecting and procuring commodities and food service equipment; nutrition; menu planning; on-site production; quality control; employee supervision; staff and management training; employee motivation; marketing; and public relations. The inclusion of model programs in these areas will be advantageous.
- 2.3 All proposals shall be valid and may not be withdrawn for sixty (60) days after submission.

#### **SECTION III: Program Objectives**

## The successful FSMC shall conduct the food service program in a manner which best fulfills the following program objectives:

- **3.1** To provide an appealing and nutritionally sound Type "A" and a la Carte program for students as economically as possible. In order to offer a la carte food service, the FSMC must also offer free, reduced price and full price reimbursable meals to all eligible children.
- **3.2** To promote nutritional awareness and interface with the District's instructional programs in this area.
- 3.3 Maintain and/or increase participation at all levels of our program by improving food quality at the service point, by upgrading equipment and facilities, by seeking student and parent input, by successful menu variation and planning, by aggressive marketing techniques and by a strong emphasis on public relations.
- 3.4 Provide a management staff and structure, which will offer adequate expertise to ensure that the school food program is one of consistent top quality and of positive regard by students, staff and the public.

- 3.5 Establish a formal structure to routinely and continuously gather input from students, staff, the public and food service employees to ensure the most effective and efficient operation possible.
- 3.6 Establish and conduct management and staff training programs, which will ensure staff development, proper supervision, adherence to health code requirements, and consistent quality control both in production and service.
- **3.7** Provide a financial reporting system that meets federal and state requirements.
- **3.8** Provide District Administration with monthly operating statements and information regarding the food service program.

#### **SECTION IV –Scope and Purpose**

- 4.1 The District shall retain control of the quality, extent and general nature of the food service program and prices to be charged. 210.16(a) (4)
- **4.2** The District shall be entitled to all receipts of the food service program.
- 4.3 All net income accruing to the District from the food service program shall remain in the program and be deposited by the FSMC into the school cafeteria fund accounts.
- **4.4** The FSMC shall be an independent contractor and not an employee of the District nor are the employees of the FSMC employees of the District.
- 4.5 The FSMC, as an independent contractor, shall have the exclusive right to operate the school lunch program and/or special milk program.
- **4.6** The FSMC shall receive for its service an administrative/management fee provided its operation results in a break-even or profitable operation.
- 4.7 The FSMC shall comply with all state, local, and federal laws and regulations, including those requirements and regulations adopted by the Commissioner of Education and the United States Department of Agriculture and any conditions or amendments thereto.
- 4.8 All local, regional and national price discounts on products or services purchased by the FSMC on behalf of the District's lunch program or a consortium of Connecticut school lunch programs shall be paid, credited or transferred to the District.

#### **SECTION V – Specifications**

- 5.1 The District participates in the National School Lunch Program. Surplus food commodities are available for use in the lunch program and it is the intent of the District that such items be included in the menus to the greatest extent possible.
- 5.2 It is required that the food service program will be self-supporting and a no-cost operation for the District, shall meet all requirements of the National School Lunch and School Breakfast Programs of the United States Department of Agriculture, and any other requirements promulgated by the state of Connecticut, FSMC costs shall include all expenses associated with the operation of the food service program as submitted in the financial budget of the RFP, on-site costs, all food costs, value of commodities used and management fee. If total FSMC costs exceed total revenue on an annual basis, the management fee portion of the total administrative/management fee shall

be reduced by the amount of the overrun, and the FSMC shall be responsible for all operational losses exceeding the amount of its fee as well.

- 5.3 The contractor shall submit a budget to the Business Manager in March of each year, earlier if requested, to be used by the District in its budget process and to demonstrate its theoretical ability to meet the above requirement to be self-supporting. Meal prices shall be approved by the District. The District shall retain ultimate control over meal prices and any other related or appropriate elements of the food service program.
- **5.4** The parties' responsibilities under the Agreement will be outlined in this Request for Proposals, including Schedule A.

#### **SECTION VI – Equipment**

- 6.1 The District shall be responsible for any losses which may arise due to equipment malfunction or loss of electrical power not within the control of the FSMC. The District shall not be responsible for loss or damage to equipment owned by the FSMC and located on the District premises. The FSMC shall notify the District of any equipment belonging to the contractor on District premises within ten (10) days of its placement on the District premises.
- 6.2 The District will provide the initial physical inventory of supplies and equipment available for use by the FSMC.
- 6.3 The District shall furnish and install any equipment or make any structural changes needed to comply with Federal, State and local laws.
- 6.4 All food preparation and serving equipment owned by the District shall remain on the premises of the District.
- The FSMC shall recommend to the District the purchase of new or replacement equipment as needed. The FSMC shall account for all equipment and protect it from pilferage or destruction, and will coordinate the repair or replacement of any equipment not functioning properly with the designated District personnel that has repair responsibility.
- The FSMC shall operate and care for all equipment and food service areas (walls, windows, lights, etc.) in a clean, safe and healthy condition in accordance with standards acceptable to the District and comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules and regulations of Federal, State and local authorities.
- 6.7 The District shall be responsible for repairs to all permanent fixtures such as faucets, lights, sewers, air conditioning, heating and all other electrical work not considered as being food equipment.

#### **SECTION VII – Facilities**

- 7.1 The District shall furnish at its expense, space, light, heat, power, hot and cold water and other utilities as are necessary for the operation of the food services to be furnished hereunder.
- 7.2 The District shall make available without cost to the FSMC, areas of the premises agreeable to both parties in which the FSMC shall render its services; such areas as reasonably necessary for providing efficient food service. The District is responsible for maintaining the facilities in a good state of repair and free from vermin.

- 7.3 The district may request additional food service programs from the FSMC, including at the discretion of the district, the provision of meals to other non-profit organizations under the NSLP, SBP CACFP and/or SFSP.
- 7.4 The District retains the right to rent food service facilities during non-school hours or weekends, provided that such rental does not interfere with the normal food service operation. When such activities take place, the District may require that a member(s) of the food service staff designated by the resident manager be on duty, and be reimbursed. If the District approves the use of the facilities for extracurricular activities before or after the District's regularly scheduled meal periods, the District shall return facilities and equipment to the FSMC in the same condition as received, normal wear and tear accepted.
- **7.5.1** The District shall have unlimited access to all areas used by the FSMC for purposes of inspections and audits.

#### **SECTION VIII – Sanitation and Safety**

- 8.1 The District shall remove all garbage and trash from the designated areas. The FSMC shall place garbage and trash in appropriate containers in the designated areas. The FSMC shall cooperate in the District recycling program.
- 8.2 The District shall be responsible for cleaning of ducts and hoods, and floors in the dining, serving and kitchen areas, walls ceilings, and light fixtures; also, the tables and chairs in the cafeteria/dining area. The FSMC shall clean the kitchen area, equipment, including but not limited to sinks, counters, tables, chairs, silverware and utensils.
- **8.3** The District shall be responsible for painting and miscellaneous repairs within the kitchen and dining areas.
- **8.4** The FSMC shall comply with all local and state sanitation requirements in the preparation and service of food.
- 8.5 The FSMC shall maintain safety programs for employees as required by Federal, State, and local authorities, including the FSMC's corporate policies.
- 8.6 The FSMC will provide sanitation standards covering housekeeping, preparation, storage, employees and equipment. The FSMC will also make adjustments to practices and operation of equipment as required.

#### **SECTION IX – Employees**

- 9.1 The FSMC shall provide all employees and establish schedules, wage rates, and benefit programs. It is expressly understood that all presently employed food service employees will be given the opportunity to interview for positions within the District as employees of the FSMC.
- 9.2 The FSMC shall have the sole responsibility to compensate its employees, including all applicable taxes, insurances and worker's compensation and shall be solely responsible for any losses incurred by the District, resulting from dishonest, fraudulent or negligent acts on the part of its employees or agents. The FSMC is required to provide a fidelity bond for all employees. All food service employees shall comply with all rules of the District.
- 9.3 The FSMC and its employees shall comply with all wage and hours of employment requirements of Federal and State law, including the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, OMB Circular No. A-102, Attachment O, paragraph 14.f. All employees of the FSMC shall be paid in accordance

with the Fair Labor Standards Act, as amended and any other applicable statutes. In addition, the FSMC will comply with all applicable federal and state employment statutes, including those statutes pertaining to labor relations.

- 9.4 The FSMC shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the implementing regulations of the United States Department of Agriculture issued there under and any additions or amendments thereto. The FSMC shall assure the New Fairfield Public Schools District that it is an equal opportunity employer and does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, creed, gender, physical or mental disability, or any other classification protected by state and federal anti-discrimination statutes. The FSMC shall provide personnel for its obligations under the Contract who have the necessary qualifications.
- 9.5 The FSMC shall maintain its own personnel policies and fringe benefits for its employees. The FSMC shall supply with this proposal a full description of the proposed benefit package, including but not limited to, levels of coverage, co-pay features and any other limitations.
- Public Schools and will be responsible for directing the food services program and implementing cooperatively agreed upon strategies for maximizing participation in the school lunch program. The Director shall be available to meet with principals, students, and staff to determine ways to improve the program. The Director must also be available to participate in Town or Board of Education meetings when food service matters are to be discussed.
- 9.7 The FSMC shall instruct its employees to abide by the policies, rules and regulations, with respect to its use of District premises as established by District from time to time and which are furnished in writing to the FSMC.
- 9.8 The FSMC shall ensure that all food service employees comply with the rules of the Connecticut Department of Education regarding fingerprinting and criminal background checks.

#### **SECTION X – Free and Reduced Lunch Policy**

- 10.1 The written policy of the District requiring feeding of students who qualify for free or reduced price lunches, shall apply to the FSMC's food service operation. The policy is on file in the District Office. The District shall be responsible for the implementation of this policy.
- The FSMC will be responsible in implementing policies covering free and reduced price meals and milk programs for those students designated by the District as meeting Federal and State agency requirements for those programs. All such meals shall be served and accounted for in a manner approved by the District so as to protect the anonymity of the recipients. Meals shall be served and proper, accurate pupil participation records shall be maintained by the FSMC.
- **10.3** To the extent permitted in statute and regulations, the FSMC will assist the District in management, recording and processing activities relating to the Free and Reduced Lunch system.

#### **SECTION XI – Meals – Portions, Planning, and Purchasing**

- 11.1 The FSMC shall recommend meal prices and portions for approval by the District. The FSMC shall not alter the prices once approved without prior notice and approval by the District.
- 11.2 The FSMC will submit with the proposal a twenty-one (21) day cycle menu and a Daily Menu Pattern for the District's Schools. The FSMC must adhere to this cycle for the first twenty-one (21) days of meal service; thereafter, changes may be made with the mutual agreement of the District and the FSMC. However, the menu standard as presented in the first twenty-one (21) day menu and the

Daily Menu Pattern, must be maintained as to type and quality of meal service. The Daily Menu Pattern should clearly indicate the number and type of choices and offerings that will be offered at all grade levels.

- 11.3 The FSMC shall provide, upon request by the District, menus to be reviewed by a school lunch committee, approved by the District and available for distribution ten (10) days prior to preparation and service of foods.
- 11.4 The FSMC shall be responsible for purchasing standards and specifications to bring about the best quality and price for the District's food service program. The grade, purchase unit, style, weight, ingredients, formulations, etc., as agreed by the District shall be complied with by the FSMC. The minimum procurement specifications are listed on Schedule B.
- 11.5 The FSMC shall serve reimbursable meal pattern lunches pursuant to the National School Lunch Program. For purposes of this proposal, lunch prices as per attached listing shall be used as a guide for calculations (reference 2008-2009-Schedule C).
- 11.6 The FSMC may offer a choice of reimbursable meal pattern lunches and shall provide specified types of service as listed in Schedule D.
- **11.7** The FSMC shall promote maximum participation in the Child Nutrition Programs.
- **11.8** The FSMC shall provide condiments and utensils as needed.
- 11.9 The FSMC shall use the District facilities for the preparation of food to be served in the designated attendance units.
- **11.10** The FSMC will manage the District's participation in the Healthy Foods Program and file applications and reports related thereto in a timely manner.

#### **SECTION XII – Federally Donated Commodities**

- **12.1** All federally donated commodities received by the District and made available to the FSMC shall accrue only to the benefit of the District's non-profit school food service program and shall be used therein.
- **12.2** The FSMC shall have records available to substantiate the use of federally donated commodities in reimbursable meal pattern meals.
- 12.3 The FSMC shall select, accept and use in as large quantities as may be used in District's non-profit school food service program, the type and quantities of available federally donated commodities, subject to the approval of the District.
- 12.4 Title of products purchased or processed using federally donated commodities must remain within the District. Any charges incurred by the FSMC when processing or purchasing products containing government commodities shall be processed for payment by the FSMC and charged back to the District as a food cost.
- 12.5 Additional Language Required as a result of the Final Rule effective November 6, 2008, 7 CFR 250 Management of Donated Foods in Child Nutrition Programs, The Nutrition Services Incentive Program, and Charitable Institutions to the RFP soliciting Food Service Management Company to Operate the Food Service Program.
  - a. Contract Requirements and Procurement
    - i. All donated foods received for use by the recipient agency for the school year

covered by the contract shall be used in the recipient agency's food service.

- ii. The food service management company will provide the following services in relation to commodity foods:
- 1. preparing and serving meals
- 2. Ordering or selection of donated foods, in coordination with the recipient agency in accordance with 7 CFR 250.52
- 3. Storage and inventory management of donated foods in accordance with 7 CFR 250.52
- 4. Payment of processing fees and or submittal of refund requests to a processor on behalf of the recipient agency, or remittance of refunds for the value of donated foods in processed end products to the recipient agency, in accordance with subpart C of 7 CFR 250
- b. Crediting for, and use of, donated foods
  - i. The food service management company must credit the recipient agency for the value of all donated foods received for use in the recipient agency's meals service in a school year (including both entitlement and bonus foods).
    - 1. Including the value of donated foods contained in processed end products if the food service management company's contract requires the food service management company to procure processed end products on behalf of the recipient agency; or act as an intermediary in passing the donated food value in processed end products on to the recipient agency.
  - ii. The food service management company will credit for donated foods by disclosure, i.e., the food service management company credits the recipient agency for the value of donated foods by disclosing, in its billing for food costs submitted to the recipient agency, the savings resulting from the receipt of donated foods for the billing period. Crediting by disclosure does not affect the requirement that the food service management company shall only bill the recipient agency for net allowable costs.
  - 1. The food service management company shall use the USDA's November 15th list of commodity food values to report the value of donated foods in its disclosure of the value of donated foods to the recipient agency on its billing documents
  - iii. All donated foods (this includes but is not limited to ground beef, ground pork, and all processed end products) shall be used in the recipient agency food service.
- c. Storage and inventory management of donated foods
  - i. The food service management company must meet the general requirements in 7 CFR 250.14(b) for the storage and inventory management of donated foods. Additionally, the food service management company must ensure that its system of inventory management does not result in the recipient agency being charged for donated foods.
  - ii. If the contract terminates, and is not extended or renewed, the food service management company must return all unused donated foods, including but not limited to ground beef, ground pork, and processed end products to the recipient

agency.

- iii. The recipient agency must ensure that the food service management company has credited it for the value of all donated foods received for use in the recipient agency's meal service in the school year. The food service management company shall cooperate in this endeavor.
- d. Required contract provisions that must also be included in the request for proposal
  - i. A statement that the food service management company must credit the recipient agency for the value of all donated foods received for use in the recipient agency's meal service in the school year, and including the value of donated foods contained in processed end products, in accordance with the contingencies in 7 CFR 250.51(a).
  - ii. The method used to credit the recipient agency for donated foods shall be crediting by disclosure, which will occur on billing documents submitted each month.
  - iii. The food service management company shall use the USDA's November 15th list of commodity food values to report the value of donated foods in its disclosure of the value of donated foods to the recipient agency on its billing documents.
  - iv. The food service management company will ensure compliance with the requirements of subpart C of 7 CFR part 250 and with the provisions of the distributing and or recipient agencies' processing agreements in the procurement of processed end products on behalf of the recipient agency, and will ensure crediting of the recipient agency for the value of donated foods contained in such end products at the processing agreement value.
  - v. The food service management company will ensure the recipient agency that the food service management company will not itself enter into the processing agreement with the processor required in subpart C of 7 CFR 250.
  - vi. The distributing agency, subdistributing agency, or recipient agency, the Comptroller General, the Department of Agriculture, or their duly authorized representatives, may perform onsite reviews of the food service management company's food service operation, including the review of records, to ensure compliance with requirements for the management and use of donated foods.
  - vii. The food service management company shall maintain records to document its compliance with 7 CFR 250.54(b).
  - viii. Extensions or renewals of the contract, if applicable, are contingent upon fulfillment of all contract provisions relating to donated foods.

#### e. Recordkeeping and reviews

- i. The food service management company must maintain the following records relating to the use of donated foods in its contract with the recipient agency:
  - 1. The donated foods and processed end products received from, or on behalf of, the recipient agency, for use in the recipient agency's food service;
  - 2. Documentation that it has credited the recipient agency for the value of all donated foods received for use in the recipient agency's food service in the school year, including, in accordance with the requirements in 7 CFR 250.51(a), the value of donated foods contained in processed end products; and

- 3. Documentation of its procurement of processed end products on behalf of the recipient agency, as applicable.
- ii. The recipient agency must ensure that the food service management company is in compliance with the requirements of this part through its monitoring of the food service operation, as required in 7 CFR parts 210, 225, or 226, as applicable.
- iii. The recipient agency must also conduct a reconciliation at least annually (and upon termination of the contract) to ensure that the food service management company has credited it for the value of all donated foods received for use in the recipient agency's food service in the school year, including, in accordance with the requirements in 7 CFR 250.51(a), the value of donated foods contained in processed end products.

#### SECTION XIII – Food Inventory, Storage, and Procurement

- 13.1 The FSMC shall purchase all food and non-food commodities at the lowest price possible, consistent with maintaining quality standards. The district retains the right to verify these standards.
- 13.2 Ownership of beginning and ending inventory of food and supplies shall remain with the District.

  Ownership of all USDA commodities shall also remain with the District as required by regulations.
- **13.3** The FSMC shall maintain adequate storage practices, inventory and control of federally donated foods in conformance with District's agreement with the Office of Donated Foods.
- 13.4 The FSMC and the District shall inventory the equipment and commodities owned by the District at the beginning of the contract year, including but not limited to flatware, trays, chinaware, glassware, kitchen utensils and food items.

#### SECTION XIV – Financial Accounting, Reporting Systems and Records

- **14.1** The FSMC shall assume accountability and responsibility for:
  - (1) Daily bookkeeping and recording functions, including State and Federal reimbursement
  - (2) Weekly Profit and Loss Statements
  - (3) Monthly Profit and Loss Statements
  - (4) Annual Budgeting
  - (5) Perpetual Inventory Costs and Controls
  - (6) Preparation of records for annual audit by District
- 14.2 The FSMC shall prepare information necessary for school lunch claims for reimbursement from State and Federal agencies and maintain such records, as the District will need to support its claims for reimbursement under the Child Nutrition Program. District shall retain signature authority on the State agency-school food authority agreement, free and reduced price policy statement and claims for reimbursement.
- **14.3** The FSMC will provide monthly and other reports to the District, which describe operating costs, meals per labor hour, meals served, etc.
- 14.4 The FSMC shall bill the District for the actual direct costs of operation incurred at the close of each month of program operation. Such current payments will only be made to the extent a balance is available in the food service accounts.

- 14.5 The District shall make payment within ten (10) days to the FSMC for the direct costs of operation plus management fee, after submission of an invoice.
- 14.6 The FSMC shall maintain records to support all allowable expenses appearing on the monthly operating statement in an orderly fashion according to expense categories.
- 14.7 The FSMC shall maintain such records (supported by invoices, receipts or other evidence) as the District will need to meet monthly reporting responsibilities and shall submit monthly operating statements in a format approved by the District no later than the 10<sup>th</sup> calendar day succeeding the month in which services were rendered; participation records shall be submitted no later than the 15<sup>th</sup> working day succeeding the month in which services were rendered. Reimbursement for direct expenses will only be allowed if previously included in the original or amended budget submitted to the district. The FSMC shall provide the District with a year-end statement.
- 14.8 The District shall designate by name and title the employee whose responsibility it shall be to supervise and audit all financially related operations of the FSMC. The audit shall be performed annually, and at the expense of the District.
- 14.9 Books and records of the FSMC pertaining to the school feeding operations shall be available at the District for a period of three (3) years from the end of the fiscal year to which they pertain, for inspection and audit by either State, or Federal representatives and auditors. In instances where audit findings have not been resolved, the records must be retained beyond the 3-year period until resolution of the issues raised by the audit.
- **14.10** No payment shall be made for meals that are spoiled or unwholesome at time of delivery or do not otherwise meet the requirements of the contract. The District will establish a reporting mechanism for record keeping of credits, if applicable.
- **14.11** Allowable costs will be paid from the nonprofit school food service account to the FSMC net of all discounts, rebates and other applicable credits accruing to or received by the FSMC or any assignee under the contract, to the extent those credits are allocable to the allowable portion of the costs billed to the school food authority.
- 14.12 The FSMC must exclude all unallowable costs from its billing documents and certify that only allowable costs are submitted for payment and records have been established that maintain the visibility of unallowable costs, including directly associated costs in a manner suitable for contract cost determination and verification. The FSMC's determination of its allowable costs must be made in compliance with the applicable USDA and Program regulations and Office of Management and Budget cost circulars. The FSMC must identify the amount of each discount, rebate and other applicable credit on bills and invoices presented to the SFA for payment and individually identify the amount as a discount, rebate, or in the case of other applicable credits, the nature of the credit. The frequency of reporting this information is subject to negotiation, monthly reports are preferred, but no less frequently than annually. The FSMC must identify the method by which it will report discounts, rebates and other applicable credits allocable to the contract that are not reported prior to conclusion of the contract. The FSMC must maintain documentation of costs and discounts, rebates and other applicable credits, and must furnish such documentation upon request to the school food authority, The State agency, or the USDA.
- **14.13** The FSMC will operate and manage the District's current Point-of-Sale POS system.
- 14.14 State financial reimbursement reports will be prepared by the FSMC and filed in a timely manner. For any reimbursement award denied or lost to the School Lunch Program due to inaccurate or late filing by the FSMC, the FSMC will make direct reimbursement to the Program in the amount of reimbursement entitlement lost

#### **SECTION XV – Licenses, Fees, Taxes**

- 15.1 The District shall obtain and post all applicable health permits for its facilities and assure that all State and local regulations are being met by the FSMC preparing or serving meals at a SFA facility.
- 15.2 The FSMC shall comply with all health and safety regulations required by Federal, State or local law and shall have State or local health certification for any facility outside the District in which it proposes to prepare meals or meal components and the FSMC shall maintain this health certification for the duration of the contract. The FSMC must meet all applicable State and local health regulations in preparing and serving meals at the SFA facility.
- **15.3** The FSMC shall comply with all building rules and regulations.

#### **SECTION XVI – Performance & Proposal Bond**

As a condition to entry into this contract, the successful vendor shall provide to the district a performance bond equaling the annual sales of the program. This performance bond will guarantee the vendor's faithful performance. The performance bond is required annually, in each year of the contract, to be submitted to the Business Office no later than July 15<sup>th</sup>, each year.

#### **SECTION XVII –Insurance**

The FSMC shall maintain for the life of the Contract the insurance coverage set forth below for each accident provided by insurance companies authorized to do business in the State of Connecticut with a rating by AM Best of "A" or better. A certificate of insurance indicating these amounts must be submitted at the time of award.

- **17.1** Comprehensive General Liability includes coverage for:
  - (1) Premises-Operations
  - (2) Products/Completed Operations
  - (3) Contractual Insurance
  - (4) Broad Form Property Damage
  - (5) Independent Contractors
  - (6) Personal Injury
  - (7) Employee Dishonesty

\$1,000,000 Combined Single Limit

#### 17.2 <u>Automobile Liability</u>

\$1,000,000 combined Single Limit

- 17.3 Worker's Compensation and Employer's Liability
  - 1. Worker's compensation Statutory
  - 2. Employer's Liability \$500,000
- 17.4 The New Fairfield Board of Education and the Town of New Fairfield shall be additional named insured's on Comprehensive General Liability, Auto, and Workers' Compensation (Employer's Liability Only) policies.

- 17.5 The contract of insurance shall provide for notice to the District of cancellation of insurance policies thirty (30) days before such cancellation is to take effect.
- 17.6 The FSMC shall defend, save harmless and indemnify the Town of New Fairfield and New Fairfield Board of Education, its officers, agents, employees and assigns from any damages resulting from any challenge to the legality of the bid process or any of the documents used here, including, but not limited to, the Request For Proposal, and Purchase, Lease/Purchase or Contract Agreements. In addition, the FSMC agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Board, the Town of New Fairfield and each of their respective members, employees, officers and agents from and against any claims, demands, losses, costs or liabilities for personal injury or property damage or any other loss which may result from the FSMC's performance or lack of performance of the Contract. Such "losses" shall include all reasonable attorney's fees and costs incurred in the representation of the Board, the Town, or any of their respective members, officers, employees or agents in any suit or claim arising from the FSMC's performance or lack of performance of the Contract or arising from the enforcement of this provision.

#### SECTION XVIII – Contract Term, Renewal and Termination

- 18.1 The Contract will be for a period of one year (beginning July 1, 2009 and ending June 30, 2010) with the option for four additional one-year renewals. The contract cannot be assigned or otherwise transferred or conveyed by either party without the written consent of the other.
- 18.2 Terms of the actual agreement with the successful FSMC will be developed through negotiation and shall be consistent with the rights reserved by the District as described herein. The terms, conditions and provisions of the agreement are incorporated into and made part of this Request for Proposal. Each proposer should be thoroughly familiar with all the terms, conditions and provisions of the Agreement.
- 18.3 The contract shall become effective after July 1, 2009 and terminate on June 30, 2010. The contract may be extended by the District and the FSMC under the rules and regulations prescribed by the Commissioner of Education and Federal regulations, as prescribed by the United States Department of Agriculture.
- 18.4 The District or the FSMC may terminate the contract, for cause, including the FSMC's noncompliance with contract terms by giving sixty (60) days written notice by registered/return receipt requested mail.
- 18.5 Neither the FSMC nor the District shall be responsible for any losses if the fulfillment of the terms of the contract should be delayed by wars, acts of public enemies, strikes, fires, floods, act of God, or any acts not within the control of either the FSMC or the District, and which by the exercise of due diligence it is unable to prevent.
- 18.6 If a per meal rate is used, the Meal Equivalency Rate used in the contract shall be adjusted annually and must be set no lower than the current free lunch reimbursement rate plus the per meal commodity foods reimbursement.
- **18.7** Recovery of prior year FSMC unreimbursed amounts from current year Food Service Program surpluses is not allowed.

#### **SECTION XIX – Special and General Conditions**

19.1 The FSMC will comply with any Special and General Conditions attached hereto and in all respects made a part of this Request for Proposal. The RFP is incorporated and made a part of the Contract.

- In the event of a conflict between the terms of the Contract and the RFP, the terms of the contract shall prevail.
- 19.2 The FSMC shall adhere to all applicable laws, especially all Pure Food laws, and all related regulations prescribed by the Federal Government, the State of Connecticut, the local Department of Health. The FSMC will comply with the rules and regulations as set up by the District and with State and/or Town Laws, etc., covering and controlling food services at the facilities.
- 19.3 The FSMC must examine kitchens, cafeterias, receiving and storing areas where services are to be provided. Inspections of the sites should be arranged through the New Fairfield BOE business office.
- **19.4** The FSMC shall provide catering service, at mutually agreed upon prices, for District functions when requested.
- 19.5 No alterations, changes or improvements shall be made to the areas granted to the FSMC without obtaining prior written permission of the District with the final decision as to the alterations, changes or improvements reserved solely for the District.
- 19.6 Any silence, absence or omission from these specifications concerning any point shall be regarded as meaning that only the best commercial practices are to prevail, and that only material (food, supplies, etc.) and workmanship of a quality that would normally be specified by the FSMC are to be used.

#### **SECTION XX – Acceptance of Proposals and Awards**

It is the intent of the District to accept the proposal that will best promote the public interest and is most advantageous to the District. The following criteria will be used in evaluating all proposals:

- **20.1** The quality of food service program and service to be provided. Shall include but not be limited to the twenty-one (21) day menu and menu format.
- **20.2** The demonstrated ability and experience of the FSMC to perform under the terms and conditions of the RFP.
- **20.3** Concepts of service and programs offered by the FSMC that will complement and enhance the school food service program.
- **20.4** The financial stability of the FSMC.
- **20.5** Corporate capability and experience. We will consider the corporate capability and experience as measured by performance record, years in the industry, relevant experience, number of districts served, client retention and satisfaction, and references.
- **20.6** The qualifications and experience of the FSMC management personnel that are to be assigned to the New Fairfield Public Schools including resumes.
- **20.7** The FSMC demonstration of having a complete understanding of the District's Food Service Program and its service requirements.
- **20.8** Evidence of training programs for both management and hourly food service employees.
- **20.9** Evidence of a Nutrition Education/Awareness Program.
- **20.10** Evidence of a comprehensive food handling, housekeeping and sanitation program.

- **20.11** Evidence of an on-site, computerized accountability system, including inventory.
- **20.12** Proposed labor staffing patterns.
- **20.13** A marketing program including advertising, promotional and communications segments.
- **20.14** Budgets, financial proformas, including price and portion lists, catering prices and adult meal prices.
- **20.15** Merchandising and presentation programs.
- **20.16** Presentation of three to five year plan for facility and equipment renovation upgrade and reimagizing.

The FSMC must submit with its proposal information regarding the above criteria.

#### SECTION XXI – PROPOSAL FORMAT AND CONTENTS

Proposals must be concise and in outline format. Pertinent supplemental information should be referenced and included as attachments. All proposals must address the following:

- **21.1** The Letter of Transmittal should include:
  - 1) An introduction of the FSMC Company.
  - 2) The name, address and telephone number of the person to be contacted, along with others who are authorized to represent the company in dealing with the RFP.
  - 3) An expression of the FSMC's ability and desire to meet the requirements of the RFP.
  - 4) Any other information not appropriately contained in the proposal itself should also be included.
- **21.2** Provide an Executive Summary which:
  - 1) Briefly describes the FSMC's approach to the proposal and clearly indicates any options or alternatives.
  - 2) Indicates any requirements that cannot be met by the FSMC.
  - 3) Highlights the major features of the proposal and identifies any supporting information considered pertinent.
  - 4) Details the financial parameters of the program.

In short, the reader should be able to determine the essence of the proposal and generally how well it meets the requirements by reading the Executive Summary.

- **21.3** Experience, References and Service Capability
  - 1) Describe the FSMC's experience as managers and consultants of food service operations in general and New Fairfield Public Schools in particular.
  - 2) Include a list of similar operations and locations where you are operating school district food service programs (a minimum of three (3) required). List name and phone number of the district

manager capable of commenting on your firm's performance. Also include a list of lost accounts and the reason for such during the last five years.

- 3) Include a resume or listing of your requirements for the proposed Resident Food Service Director for the District.
- 4) Include the resume and background of person who will supervise the work of the Resident Manager and how your company will ensure the best performance.
- 5) Include a table of company organization and a plan for the management, supervision and staffing proposed under this contract.
- 6) Describe your company's plan to recruit and retain qualified personnel, including (but not limited to) bonuses, awards, and/or contests, incentives, etc.
- 7) Company organization including all positions that are non-school based.

#### **21.4** Financial Condition

Provide data to indicate the financial condition of the company. Provide an audited financial statement for the last three (3) years.

#### 21.5 Accounting and Reporting Systems

- (a) Describe complete accounting procedures you would use for:
  - 1. Inventory Control
  - 2. Method of recording, checking and reporting sales
  - 3. Internal control of cash handling
  - 4. Internal audit systems
  - 5. All regular accounting forms used with detailed explanations
  - 6. All regular reports used with detailed explanations
- (b) Provide examples of the reports you will provide the District and the frequency of each. List other assistance you will provide the District (and costs, if extra).

#### 21.6 Personnel Management and Training

- a) Describe your company's personnel management philosophy, particularly regarding resident managers and their relationship to existing staff?
- b) Describe training and development programs you will provide for employees and management personnel.
- c) Explain how your firm attempts to improve employee morale and reduce turnover.
- d) Explain how your firm attempts to improve employee evaluation (include forms) and disciplinary action methods.
- e) Description of proposed benefits package for employees.

#### 21.7 Innovation and Promotion of the School Lunch Program

a) How would your lunch program in the District differ from current operations?
 Describe the costs and benefits of your proposed changes.

- b) Describe how you would implement changes. Include a staffing model if different from current staffing.
- c) How would you involve employees to use their expertise and experience in making future innovations?
- d) Provide examples of intended service and merchandising programs.
- e) What is your philosophy regarding promotion (increasing awareness and participation) of the school lunch program? How would you implement this philosophy in our District?

#### 21.8 Involvement of Students, Staff and Patrons

What is your philosophy and plan regarding involvement of students, teachers, building administrators and parents in program evaluation and selection of menus, discussion of nutritional issues, etc.? Give examples, by client, of your efforts and results.

#### 21.9 Menu Selection Use of Commodities, Food Quality and Portion Size

- a) Describe your philosophy for each of the following:
  - 1. Menu selection (include menus you will implement)
  - 2. Use of commodity food
  - 3. Food Quality
  - 4. Portion Quantities
- b) Actual menus to be implemented.
- c) Provide a listing of a la carte items and proposed prices.

#### **21.10** Cost Information

- a) List and describe any and all costs to the District for any management fees to be charged, preferably on a per meal basis, for profit, overhead and other off-site costs not otherwise paid by the District.
- b) If consulting services are not covered in management fees, list those services along with the extra charges.
- c) List payment terms and arrangements.
- d) Complete budgeted financial forms provided in Schedule E and make sure a summary of the following is included.
  - 1. Financial Budget Projections
  - 2. Income Summary
  - 3. Labor cost summary: Management/Administrative/Clerical
  - 4. Individual School Labor Cost Summary
  - 5. Miscellaneous Expense Summary

#### 21.11 Performance & Proposal Bond

Provide a surety letter of intent or equal from a bonding company which demonstrates your company's ability to acquire a performance bond for the amount of the contract should it be awarded.

a) In the past contractors were asked to provide a copy of the contract that they proposed be used. After USDA clarification this is no longer allowed. While negotiating contract terms is acceptable, potential contractors are not permitted to draft contract terms and conditions. Per USDA guidance this position is consistent with Sections 3016.36(b) and 3016.60(b).

#### **21.12** Submission of Proposal

- a) Portions of the proposal shall be submitted on the blank financial forms provided by the District.
- b) Clarification of interpretation must be made to the District prior to submission of a proposal.
- c) Please submit five (5) copies of the proposal.

#### SECTION XXII - EVALUATION OF PROPOSALS

#### **22.1** Proposal Evaluation Criteria

A. Proposal will be evaluated by a committee against the following criteria with assigned weights as indicated. Each area of the evaluation should be addressed in detail in the proposal.

<u>Weight</u>	<u>Criteria</u>
30 points	Experience, References and Service Capability
5 points	Accounting and Reporting Systems
15 points	Financial Condition
10 points	Personnel Management and Training
15 points	Innovation, Promotion, Marketing and Merchandising of the School Lunch Program
5 points	Involvement of Student, Staff, Patrons and the community
10 points	Menus, Concepts of Service, Commodities, Food Quality & Portion Size
10 points	Recommended Staffing

#### **22.2** Oral Presentation

An oral presentation by an FSMC to supplement a proposal may be required. These presentations, if required, will be scheduled by the District subsequent to the receipt of proposals and prior to the award.

#### **22.3** Proprietary Information

The FSMCs are requested to mark any specific information contained in their proposal, which is not to be disclosed to the public, or issued for purposes other than the evaluation of the proposals. Pricing and service elements of the successful proposal will not be considered proprietary.

#### 22.4 <u>Site Visits to Proposers</u>

Proposers will meet on March 26, 2009 at 2:00 P.M. in the High School Conference Room at 54

Gillotti Rd, New Fairfield for a **MANDATORY** proposers conference after which school visitations will be conducted. Any proposer failing to make site visits will have its proposal disqualified and rejected.

# RESPONSIBILITY SURVEY SUMMARY SCHEDULE..... A

FOOD	FSMC	DISTRICT
Food Purchasing Processing of Invoices Payment of Invoice USDA Administrative Charges USDA Processing Charges USDA Delivery Charges	X X X X X	
LABOR	FSMC	
Payment of Hourly Regular Full-Time Wages Payroll Taxes of Hourly Employees Fringe Benefits and Insurance of Hourly Employee Preparation of Hourly Employees Payroll Processing of Hourly Employees Payroll Workers' Compensation for Hourly Employees	EMPLOYEES X X X X X X	
ADDITIONAL ITEMS		
China/Silver/Glassware – Original Purchase to Inventory Level Required for Operation China/Silver/Glassware – Replacement During Operation Telephone – Local	X X	XX
Telephone – Long Distance Removal of Trash and Garbage from Kitchen Removal of Trash and Garbage from Premises	X	XX XX
Replacement of Expendable Equipment (Pots,Pans,etc.) Replacement of Non-Expendable Equipment Products and Public Liability Insurance	X X	XX
Cost of Repairing Equipment Uniforms	X	XX
Ticket Printing Local Travel (Intra-District and Banking Reimbursement)	X X	

# RESPONSIBILITY SURVEY SUMMARY SCHEDULE.... A

SUPPLIES	FSMC	DISTRICT
Detergent and Cleaning Supplies Paper Supplies Menu Paper and Printing Postage Taxes/Licenses Pest control Utilities	X X X X	XX XX
CLEANING		
Ceiling, Light Fixtures and Fans Dishwashing Equipment	X X	XX
Hoods Floors Rest Rooms Vent from Hoods to Outside Walls		XX XX XX XX
Kitchen/Serving Area Equipment Cafeteria/Serving Area Equipment Dining Area/Tables and Chairs	X	XX XX

## PROCUREMENT SPECIFICATIONS SCHEDULE.... B

#### **MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS**

Dairy Products Grade A

Meat USDA Grade Choice

Fish U.S. Government Inspected

Poultry USDA Grade A

Canned Fruit & Vegetables U.S. Grade A Choice

Fresh Fruits & Vegetables U.S. No. 1 Grade

Frozen Fruit & Vegetables USDA Grade A

Bread Packaged bread and buns to be

Manufacturer's dated for freshness

Milk Grade A

Ice Cream Grade A

#### SCHEDULE... C

#### **PRICE LIST 2008 - 2009**

#### **Consolidated Schools**

Lunch Price \$2.25 Reduced Lunch \$0.40 Milk \$0.50

#### **Meeting House Hill Schools**

Lunch Price \$2.25 Reduced Lunch \$0.40 Milk \$0.50

#### New Fairfield High/Middle School

Lunch Price \$2.50 - 2.60 - 3.20 - 3.50

Reduced Lunch \$0.40 Milk \$0.50

#### **Adults**

Lunch Price \$3.00

#### SCHEDULE.... D

Lunch, milk and snack food will be provided in accordance with the terms and conditions of the food service specification at the following locations:

SCHOOL NAME	PROJECTED ENROLLMENT	SERVING TIMES
Consolidated School	654	11:10 – 1:10
Meeting House Hill School	643	11:00 – 1:10
Middle School X-Days *	729	11:33 – 1 :14 11:14 – 12:50
High School	1018	11:22 – 12:28

Note: The schedule provided is for serving times on a normal school day. Schedules will vary on days when the schools have a modified schedule.

<sup>\*</sup>X-Days are Tuesday, Wednesday and Thursday.

#### **OPERATING STATEMENT SCHEDULE.... E**

#### PROJECTED REVENUE

Cafeteria Sales: (Lunch) Student Paid Meals:			
	Elementary Schools	@\$=	\$
	Middle School	@\$=	\$
	High School	@\$=	\$
Student Reduced Price:	District-Wide	@\$=	\$
Student A la Carte:			
Adult Lunches:		@\$=	\$
Adult A la Carte:			
Cafeteria Sales: (Breakfast) Student Paid Meals:	Elementary SchoolsMiddle School	@\$=	\$ \$
Student Reduced Price	High SchoolDistrict-Wide		\$ \$
Special Functions:			
Bank Interest:			\$
Other Income			\$
Other Income			\$
	Subtotal Sale	es	\$(A)
Anticipated Reimbursemen	t Federal & State: (Lunch)District-wide Paid MealsReduced PriceFree	@\$= @\$=	\$ \$ \$ \$
	Subtotal Lunch Reir	mbursement	\$(B)
Anticipated Reimbursemen	t Federal & State: (Breakfast)District-wide Paid MealsReduced PriceFree	@\$=	\$ \$ \$
	Subtotal Breakfast Rei	mbursement	\$(C)
		<b>Total Income</b>	(A+B+C) \$

#### **PROJECTED EXPENSES**

Student Breakfast Adult Lunches Employee Lunches District-wide A la Carte Special Functions	Meals Meals Meals Meals	@\$= @\$= @\$=	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$
	1	Net Food Cost	\$ (D)
s: (Employee schedules, work	hours and rates	of pay must be attac	hed.)
Administration/Clerical Food Service Workers Other: Other:			\$ \$ \$
ployee schedules, work hours	and rates of pay	must be attached.)	
Management Other:			\$ \$
Costs:			
	Employee Fring	e Benefits	\$
ENSES			
Commodity Delivery General support and adm Depreciation Equipment Rental Insurance Menu/Ticket Printing Office Supplies Performance Bond Physicals Promotions	- ,	se	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$
	Student Breakfast Adult Lunches Employee Lunches District-wide A la Carte Special Functions USDA Processing Charge USDA Commodity Value  S: (Employee schedules, work  Administration/Clerical Food Service Workers Other: Other: Other:  ployee schedules, work hours  Management Other:  Costs:  ENSES  Auto Allowance Cafeteria Supplies (paper Commodity Delivery General support and adm Depreciation Equipment Rental Insurance Menu/Ticket Printing Office Supplies Performance Bond Physicals Promotions	Student Breakfast Meals Adult Lunches Meals Employee Lunches Meals District-wide A la Carte Special Functions USDA Processing Charges USDA Commodity Value  s: (Employee schedules, work hours and rates Administration/Clerical Food Service Workers Other: Other: Other:  ployee schedules, work hours and rates of pay Management Other:  Costs:  Employee Fring  ENSES  Auto Allowance Cafeteria Supplies (paper, cleaning, etc.) Commodity Delivery General support and administrative expension Depreciation Equipment Rental Insurance Menu/Ticket Printing Office Supplies Performance Bond Physicals	Student Breakfast Meals = Adult Lunches Meals = Employee Lunches Meals = District-wide A la Carte Special Functions USDA Processing Charges USDA Commodity Value    Net Food Cost  St. (Employee schedules, work hours and rates of pay must be attacked.)  Administration/Clerical Food Service Workers Other: Other: Other:   ployee schedules, work hours and rates of pay must be attached.)  Management Other:   Costs:    Employee Fringe Benefits  ENSES  Auto Allowance   Cafeteria Supplies (paper, cleaning, etc.)   Commodity Delivery   General support and administrative expense   Depreciation   Equipment Rental   Insurance   Menu/Ticket Printing   Office Supplies   Performance Bond   Physicals   Promotions

Uniforms/Laundry Manuals Miscellaneous Other: Other:			\$ \$ \$ \$
Other:			\$
Total Other Expe	enses		\$(E)
MANAGEMENT FEE		Flat Rate	¢
		riai naie	\$
		OR	(F <b>)</b>
Cents Per Me	eal (Complete Calculation Belo	w)	\$
Cents Per Meal C	Calculation:		
Student Annualized Meals		Managemer	nt Fee \$
Total number of reimbursable me Annualized A la Carte	eals		
	= The total \$ value of a la car bursement rate + per meal com		
	Total Management Fee	\$	
	EXPENSE TOTAL		\$ (C+D+E+F)
	PROFIT/LOSS	S (SUBSIDY)	\$

<sup>\*</sup>Student Annualized Meals = the number of Reimbursable meals + ((the \$ amount of adult and a la carte sales) divided by (the Current free lunch reimbursement rate + the per meal commodity foods reimbursement)).

<sup>\*\*</sup>In accordance with Section 18.6 of this RFP the Meal Equivalency Rate used in the contract shall be adjusted annually and must be set no lower than the current free lunch reimbursement rate plus the commodity foods reimbursement rate.

#### Schedule E (cont.)

#### **SUMMARY**

1.	Projected annual subsidy by board not to exceed the amount of	\$	
2.	Are labor cuts anticipated/factored into this proposal?	YES	NO
3.	Is the price of the student lunch increased?	YES	NO
4.	Are the prices for Ala Carte items changed?	YES	NO
5.	Have you made a physical inspection of all school facilities and found all facilities and equipment to be satisfactory?	YES	NO
6.	Identify any clauses or conditions that would change the bottom line.		
7.	Identify and include a prioritized listing of any major new equipment you feel is desirable for this contract.		

State the percent and amount of increase in the management and administrative fees or indicate if your company chooses to use the consumer price index:

8. What would you suggest in dealing with competitive

food sales through school stores?

CPI	(yes or no)			
If no then fill out the following:				
Year 2	%	\$		
Year 3	%	\$		
Year 4	%	\$		
Year 5	%	\$		

# REIMBURSEMENTS RATES TO BE USED BY ALL FSMC'S SCHEDULE F

The following are the reimbursement rates to be used in completing Schedule E:

1. Federal Reimbursement Rates:

#### Lunch

Paid Meals @ - \$0.24

Reduced @ - \$2.17

Free @ - \$2.57

2. State Reimbursement Rates:

#### Lunch

All Meals @ - \$4.534231

Reduced @ - \$4.534231

Free @ - \$4.534231 Healthy Food Certification Reimbursement 0.10 Per Meal

3. Commodity Assistance Rate: 20.75 Per Reimbursable Meal

### Exhibit A

#### Reimbursement Claims for the last 12 months

January, 2008	\$9277.35
February, 2008	\$7228.22
March, 2008	\$7983.37
April, 2008	\$7660.12
May, 2008	\$9265.15
June, 2008	\$4949.01
September, 2008	\$9320.09
October, 2008	\$10,745.13
November, 2008	\$6431.07
December, 2008	\$7680.06
January, 2009	\$8469.05

## Exhibit B

## School Calendar

# 

Exhibit C

Meal Counts By schools

#### Consolidated School

		Consolidated Concor	
Month	Free	Reduced	Paid
January, 2008 February, 2008 March, 2008 April, 2008 May, 2008 June, 2008 September, 2008 October, 2008 November, 2008 December, 2008 January, 2009	290 223 238 254 304 168 233 313 201 251 275	193 124 139 163 180 90 117 163 88 111	2935 2203 2361 2529 3022 1714 2538 2969 1647 2132 2329
		Meeting House Hill School	
January, 2008 February, 2008 March, 2008 April, 2008 May, 2008 June, 2008 September, 2008 October, 2008 November, 2008 December, 2008 January, 2009	344 252 287 297 343 189 362 474 300 351 404	269 208 245 233 302 162 262 366 202 255 329	4693 3573 3799 3633 4605 2486 3957 4279 2473 3014 3390
		High School/Middle School	
January, 2008 February, 2008 March, 2008 April, 2008 May, 2008 June, 2008 September, 2008 October, 2008 November, 2008 December, 2008 January, 2009	695 556 620 565 712 362 720 835 509 603 654	562 429 466 409 573 289 467 490 279 323 351	9220 7730 8604 7913 10132 4727 10608 10941 6716 7721 8025

Exhibit D
Free/Reduced Students by School

Consolidated Feb. 2009 Jan. 2009 Dec. 2008 Nov, 2008 Oct. 2008 Sept. 2008	Enrollment 398 408 408 398 407 407	Free 19 21 20 20 17 18	Reduced 12 11 10 10 11 10
Meeting House Hill Feb. 2009 Jan. 2009 Dec. 2008 Nov. 2008 Oct. 2008 Sept. 2008	670 668 668 670 699	29 28 27 27 26 29	21 22 22 22 22 22 23
Middle School/High Feb. 2009 Jan. 2009 Dec. 2008 Nov. 2008 Oct. 2008 Sept. 2008	School 1694 1730 1728 1694 1687 1687	50 57 55 54 52 70	38 34 34 32 39 50

## **ADDENDUMS**

#### Non - Collusive Statement Food Service Program New Fairfield Public Schools

By submission of this proposal, the FSMC certifies that:

- a. This proposal has been independently arrived at without collusion with any other proposer, competitor, potential proposer or potential competitor.
- b. This proposal has not been knowingly disclosed and will not be knowingly disclosed prior to the opening of the proposals for the work to be performed or the goods to be sold, to any other proposer, competitor, potential proposer or potential competitor.
- c. No attempt has been made, or will be made, to induce any other person, partnership or corporation to submit or not to submit a proposal.
- d. The person signing this proposal certifies that he has fully informed himself regarding the accuracy of the statements contained in this certification, and under penalties of perjury, affirms the truth thereof, such penalties being applicable to the bidder, as well as the person signing in his behalf.
- e. That below is a certified copy of the resolution authorizing the execution of this certificate by the signator of this proposal on behalf of the corporate proposer.

Signature of the person authorized to submit this	s proposal
Typed or printed name of signator and title	<del></del>
Date:/	
Resolve that	be authorized to sign and
(name)	
submit the proposal of this corporation	(name)

For the Food Service Management Program at the New Fairfield Public Schools.

# Prototype Certificate of Independent Price Determination

e school food authority and the Food Service I ate of Independent Price Determination.	Management Company (offeror) shall execute this
f Food Service Management Company	Name of school Food Authority
certifies as to its own organization, that in con  (1) The prices in this offer have been arr consultation, communication or agreement	ived at independently, without nt, for the purpose of restricting
this offer has not been knowingly disclose knowingly be disclosed by the offeror pric advertised procurement, or prior to award	ed by the offeror and will not or to opening in the case of an d in the case of a negotiated
	Frood Service Management Company  By submission of this offer, the offeror certifies certifies as to its own organization, that in con  (1) The prices in this offer have been arriconsultation, communication or agreement competition, as to any matter relating to swith any competitor;  (2) Unless otherwise required by law, the this offer has not been knowingly disclosed knowingly be disclosed by the offeror pricadvertised procurement, or prior to award procurement, directly or indirectly to any organization.

(B) Each person signing this offer on behalf of the Food Service Management Company Certifies that:

person or firm to submit or not to submit, an offer for the purpose of

restricting competition.

(1) He or she is the person in the offeror's organization responsible within the Organization for the decision as to the prices being offered herein and has not participated, and will not participate, in any action contrary to (A) (1) through (A)(3) above; or

(3) No attempt has been made or will be made by the offeror to induce any

Page 1 of 2

FSMC Guidance of SFAs – June 1995 Appendix D – Price (2) He or she is not the person in the offeror's organization responsible within the organization for the decision as to the prices being offered herein, but that he or she has been authorized in writing to act as agent for the persons responsible for such decision in certifying that such persons have not participated and will not participate, in any action contrary to (A) (1) through (A)(3) above, and as their agent does hereby so certify; and he or she has not participated, and will not participate, in any action contrary to (A) (1) through (A)(3) above.

To the best of my knowledge, this Food Service Management Company, its affiliates, subsidiaries, officers, directors and employees are not currently under investigation by any governmental agency and have not in the last three years been convicted or found liable for any act prohibited by State or Federal law in any jurisdiction, involving conspiracy or collusion with respect to bidding on any public contract, except as follows:

Signature of Food Service Management Company's Authorized Representative	Title	Date		
In accepting this offer, the SFA certifies that no representative of the SFA has taken any action, which may have jeopardized the independence of the offer referred to above.				
Signature of School Food Authority's Authorized Representative	Title	Date		

Note: Accepting a bidder's offer does not constitute award of the contract.

Page 2 of 2

FSMC Guidance of SFAs – June 1995 Appendix D – Price

#### CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

Applicable to Grants, Subgrants, Cooperative Agreements, and Contracts Exceeding \$100,000 in Federal Funds.

Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction and is imposed by section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. This Certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

- (1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of a Federal contract, the making of a Federal loan, the entering into a cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of a Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.
- (2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal grant or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying", in accordance with its instructions.
- (3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all covered subawards exceeding \$100,000 in Federal funds at all appropriate tiers and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

FSMC Guidance for SFAs – June 1995 Appendix F – Lobbying Certification

### **DISCLOUSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES**

Complete this form to disclose lobbying activities pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352 (See reverse for public burden disclosure.)

1. Type of Federal Action:	2. Status of Federal Action:	3. Report Type:
a. contract	a. Bid/offer/application	a. Initial filing
b. grant	b. Initial award	b. Material change
c. cooperative agreement	c. Post-award	For Material Change Only:
d. loan		Year
e. loan guarantee		Year Date of Last
f. loan insurance		Report
4. Name and Address of Reporting Entity:	5. If Reporting Entity in No. 4 is Subaw	vardee, Enter Name and
PrimeSubawardee	Address of Prime:	
Tier, if known		
Congressional District, if known:	Congressional District, if known:	
6. Federal Department/Agency:	7. Federal Program Name/Description:	•
o. Tederal Department/Agency.	7. Tederal Frogram Name/Description.	•
	055444 1 1/2 1/3	
	CFDA Number, if applicable:	
8. Federal Action Number, if known:	9. Award Amount, if known:	
	\$	
10. a. Name and Address of Lobbying Entity:	10. b. Individuals Performing Services	
(if individual, last name, first name, middle)	No. 10, a.) (last name, first name, mide	dle)
(Attach Continuation Sheet(s)	SF-LLL-A if Necessary)	
11. Amount of Payment (check all that apply):	13. Type of payment (check all that apply	/):
\$	a. retainer	•
	b. one-time fee	
Actual Planned	c. commission	
	d. contingent fee	
	e. deferred	
	f. other; specify:	
		<del></del>
12. Form of Payment (check all that apply):		
a. cash		
b. in-kind; specify:		
Nature		
Actual		
14. Brief Description of Services Performed or to	he Performed and Date(s) of Service inc	luding officer(s) employee(s)
or member(s) contracted for Payment indicat		rading officer(s), employee(s),
5		
(Attach Con	inuation Sheet(s) SF-LLL-A, if necessary)	
Are Continuation Sheet(s) SF-LLL-A Attached:	Yes (Number )	No
16. Information requested through this form is		
authorized by Title 31 U.S.C. section 1352. This	Signature:	
disclosure of lobbying activities is a material	<u> </u>	<del></del>
representation of fact upon which reliance was	Print Name:	
placed by the tier above when this transaction		<del> </del>
was made or entered into. This disclosure is	Title:	
required pursuant to U.S.C. 1352. This information will be reported to the Congress		<del></del>
semi-annually and will be available for public	Telephone:	
inspection. Any person who fails to file the		<del></del>
required disclosure shall be subject to a civil	Date:	
penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more		<del></del>
than \$100,000 for each such failure.		
Federal Use Only:	Authorized for Loca	al Reproduction Standard Form - LLL

SF-LLL

# DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES CONTINUATION SHEET SF-LLL-A

Reporting entity:	_Page	of

#### INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETION OF SF-LLL, DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES

This disclosure form shall be completed by the reporting entity, whether subawardee or prime Federal recipient, at the initiation or receipt of a covered Federal action, or a material change to a previous filing, pursuant to title 31 U.S.C. section 1352. The filing of a form is required for each payment or agreement to make payment to any lobbying entity for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with a covered Federal action. Use of SF-LLL-A Continuation Sheet for additional information if the space on the form is inadequate. Complete all items that apply for both the initial filing and material change report. Refer to the implementing guidance published by the Office of Management and Budget for additional information.

- 1. Identify the type of covered Federal action for which lobbying activity is and/or has been secured to influence the outcome of a covered Federal action.
- 2. Identify the status of the covered Federal action.
- 3. Identify the appropriate classification of this report. If this is a follow-up report caused by a material change to the information previously reported, enter the year and quarter in which the change occurred. Enter the date of the last previously submitted report by this reporting entity for this covered Federal action.
- 4. Enter the full name, address, city, state and zip code of the reporting entity. Include Congressional District, if known. Check the appropriate classification of the reporting entity that designates if it is, or expects to be, a prime or subaward recipient. Identify the tier of the subawardee, e.g., the first subawardee of the prime is the 1<sup>st</sup> tier. Subawards include but are not limited to subcontracts, subgrants and contract awards under grants.
- 5. If the organization filing the report in item 4 checks "Subawardee", then enter the full name, address, city, state and zip code of the prime Federal recipient. Include Congressional District, if known.
- 6. Enter the name of the Federal agency making the award or loan commitment. Include at least one organizational level below agency name, if known. For example, Department of Transportation, United States Coast Guard.
- 7. Enter the Federal program name or description for the covered Federal action (item 1). If known, enter the full Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number for grants, cooperative agreements, loans, and loan commitments.
- Enter the most appropriate Federal identifying number available for the Federal action identified in item 1 (e.g., Request for Proposal (RFP) Number, invitation for Bid (IFB) Number; grant announcement number; the contract, grant or loan award number; the application/proposal control number assigned by the Federal agency). Include prefixes, e.g., "RFP-DE-90-001."
- 9. For a covered Federal action where there has been an award or loan commitment by the Federal agency, enter the Federal amount of the award/loan commitment for the prime entity identified in item 4 or 5.
- 10. (a) Enter the full name, address, city, state and zip code of the lobbying entity engaged by the reporting entity identified in item 4 to influence the covered Federal action.
  - (b) Enter the full names of the individual(s) performing services, and include full address if different from 10(a). Enter Last Name. First Name, and Middle initial (MI).
- 11. Enter the amount of compensation paid or reasonably expected to be paid by the reporting entity (item 4) to the lobbying entity (item 10). Indicate whether the payment has been made (actual) or will be made (planned). Check all that apply. If this is a material change report, enter the cumulative amount of payment made or planned to be made.
- 12. Check all that apply. If payment is made through an in-kind contribution, specify the nature and value of the in-kind payment.
- 13. Check all that apply. If other, specify nature.
- 14. Provide a specific and detailed description of the services that the lobbyist has performed, or will be expected to perform, and the date(s) of any services rendered. Include all preparatory and related activity, not just time spent in actual contact with Federal officials. Identify the Federal official(s) or employee(s) contracted or the officer(s), employee(s), or Member(s) of Congress that were contacted.
- 15. Check whether or not a SF-LLL-A Continuation Sheet(s) is attached. List number of sheets if yes.
- 16. The certifying official shall sign and date the form; print his/her name, title, and telephone number.

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the Office of Management and Budget. Paperwork Reduction Project (0348-00046), Washington, D.C. 20503.

#### U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion – Lower Tier Covered Transactions

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension. 7 CFR Part 3017, Section 3017.510, Participants' responsibilities. The regulations were published as Part IV of the January 30, 1989, <u>Federal Register</u> (pages 4722-4733). Copies of the regulations may be obtained by contacting by contacting the Department of Agriculture agency with which this transaction originated.

#### (BEFORE COMPLETING CERTIFICATION, READ INSTRUCTIONS OF REVERSE)

- 1. The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency.
- 2. Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

Organization Name	PR/Award Number or Project Name
Name and Title(s) of Authorized Representative(s)	
Signature(s)	Date

Form AD-1048 (1/92)

FSMC Guidance for SFAs – June 1995 Appendix –E – Debarment/Suspension

#### **Instructions for Certification**

- 1. By signing and submitting this form, the prospective lower tier participant is providing the certification set out on the reverse side in accordance with these instructions.
- 2. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective lower tier participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.
- 3. The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the person to which this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective lower tier participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.
- 4. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," 'lower tier covered transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and "voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of rules implementing Executive Order 12549. You may contact the person to which this proposal is submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations.
- 5. The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this form that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency with which this transaction originated.
- 6. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this form that it will include this clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.
- 7. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List.
- 8. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.
- 9. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and /or debarment.

Form AD-1048 (1/92)

FSMC Guidance for SFAs – June 1995 Appendix E – Debarment/Suspension

#### **CLEAN AIR AND WATER CERTIFICATE**

Applicable if the contract exceeds \$100,000 or the Contracting Officer has determined that the orders under an indefinite quantity contract in anyone year will exceed \$100,000 or a facility to be used has been the subject of a conviction under the Clean Air Act (41 U.S.C. 1857c-8(c) (1) or the Federal Water Pollution Control Act 33 1319(d) and is listed by EPA or the contract is not otherwise exempt. Both the School Food Authority (SFA) and Food Service Management Company (offeror) shall execute this Certificate.

NAME OF FOOD SERVICE MANAGEMENT COMPANY

NAME OF SCHOOL FOOD AUTHORITY

#### THE FOOD SERVICE MANAGEMENT COMPANY AGREES AS FOLLOWS:

- A To comply with all the requirements of Section 114 of the Clean Air Act, as amended (41 U.S.C. 1857, et seq., as amended by Public Law 91-604) and Section 308 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. 1251, et seq., as amended by Public Law 92-500), respectively, relating to inspection, monitoring, entry, reports and information as well as other requirements specified in Section 114 and Section 308 of the Air Act and the Water Act, respectively, and all regulations and guidelines issued thereunder before the award of this contract.
- B That no portion of the work required by this prime contract will be performed in a facility listed on the Environmental Protection Agency List of Violating Facilities on the date when this contract was awarded unless and until the EPA eliminates the name of such facility or facilities from such listing.
- C To use his/her best efforts to comply with clean air standards and clean water standards at the facilities in which the contract is being performed.
- D To insert the substance of the provisions of this clause in any nonexempt subcontract, including this paragraph.

#### THE TERMS IN THIS CLAUSE HAVE THE FOLLOWING MEANINGS:

- A The term "Air Act" means the Clean Air Act, as amended (41 U.S.C. 1957 et seg., as amended by Public Law 91-604).
- B The term "Water Act" means Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq., as amended by Public Law 92-500).
- The term "Clean Air Standards" means any enforceable rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, limitations, orders, controls, prohibitions, or other requirements which are contained in, issued under, or otherwise adopted pursuant to the Air Act or Executive Order 11738, an applicable implementation plan as described in section 110(d) of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 1957c-5(d)), an approved implementation procedure or plan under Section 111(c) or Section 111(d), respectively, of the Air Act (42 U.S.C. 1857c-6(c) or (d)), or approved implementation procedure under Section 112(d) of the Air Act (42 U.S.C. 1857c-7(d)).
- D The term "Clean Air Standards" means any enforceable limitation, control, condition, prohibition, standard, or other requirement which is promulgated pursuant to the Water Act or contained in a permit issued to a discharger by the Environmental Protection Agency or by a State under an approved program, as authorized by Section 402 of the Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1342) or by local government to ensure compliance with pretreatment regulations as required by Section 307 of the Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1317).
- E The term "Compliance" means compliance with clean air or water standards. Compliance shall also mean compliance with a schedule or plan ordered or approved by a court of competent jurisdiction, the Environmental Protection Agency or an Air or Water Pollution Control Agency in accordance with the requirements of the Air Act or Water Act and regulations issued pursuant thereto.

F	The term "facility" means any building, plant, installation, structure, mine, vessel, or other floating craft, location or sites of
	operations, owned, leased or supervised by the Food Service Management Company.

SIGNATURE OF FOOD SERVICE MANAGEMENT COMPANY'S AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE	TITLE	DATE
SIGNATURE OF SCHOOL FOOD AUTHORITY'S AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE	TITLE	DATE

#### SAMPLE

## ENERGY POLICY AND CONSERVATION ACT CONTRACT ADDENDUM

	agrees to comply with the
Food Service Management Company (FS	
Energy Policy and Conservation Act (P.L. 94-160	3) for the duration of the contract.
For:FSMC	For the Board of Education
Signature	Signature
Title	Title
Date	Date